CITY OF aé}oy\/
AT YOUR SERVICE

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

Ial el s
Salem Police Station « Equitas, by artist Blessing Hancock

‘EamAily
o L ¥

M
T Ll
i,

LN
S

Urban Renewal Agency

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT






URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF
THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON

(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)

ANNUAL

FINANCIAL

REPORT

For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2022

Prepared by the Finance Department



URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE
CITY OF SALEM, OREGON

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
F N = N (OO o o (0] 7 I 1
MAPS OF URBAN RENEWAL AREAS
RIVETTONI/DOWNIOWN..... .ottt e e et e e e e e e e et e e e e e eaaeeeenaeeennneeees 2
Y1412,/ 3
NOMN GAEWAY ... ..ottt et e e et e e e e e e e e e eeesat e e e eeeeeeeesssanaaeeeaeeeeeennnnns 4
L A XS] RS 7= 1 1= o T 5
Mill Creek INAUSTHAl ParK ..........coouniiie e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeees 6
1Y [ 1 (o £ 7
ST o LU ATV 1 (= 0] 1 8
Jory Apartments TIF DiIStriCt. ... e 9
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REP O R T ... e e e e e e 10
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ...ooeee et 13
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-wide Financial Statements
Statement Of Nt POSITION....... oo e e e e eaans 23
StatemMENt Of ACHVITIES ....ee e e e e e e e e e e et e e eaaeees 24
Fund Financial Statements
Governmental Funds
BalanCe SN ... .o 25
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
(€T g aTaal=Y ) c= 1IN LU T 26
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities ............ccoooeeenn. 27
Proprietary Fund
Statement Of NEt POSIHION ... ... e e e e e eaans 28
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position ..., 29
Statement Of CAsh FIOWS..... ... e e e e e e e e e e e e eannas 30
Notes to the Financial StatemMENtS .........ooouiiiii e e 32



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Governmental Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —

Budget and Actual - Governmental FUNdS.............ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiii 45
Debt Service Fund
Combining BalanCe SNEEt ............uu i 47
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.............. 49
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual
RIVerfront/DOWNIOWN........oooii e 51
NOMh GatEWAY ..o 53
WEST SAIEIM .. s 54
Mill Creek INAUSTrial Park ...........ooooiiiiee e e e e e e e e eeennnnns 55
MCGIICHIIST ... 56
SOULh WaterfrONt ... e e e e e e e e e e e e as 57
Jory Apartments TIF DistriCt. ... ..o e 58
Capital Projects Fund
Combining BalancCe Sheet...........ooo e 59
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.............. 61
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual
RIVErfroNt/DOWNIOWN.......oo e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeennnns 63
FAITVIBW ..ot e oottt e e e e e e et e e e aa e e e e e e eeeaaaaa 64
NOIMh GatEWAY ... 65
WEST SAIEIM .. s 66
Mill Creek INAUSTrial Park ...........ooooiiiiee e e e e e e e e eeennnnns 67
MCGIICHIIST ... 68
SOULh WaterfrONt ... e e e e e e e e e e e as 69
Jory Apartments TIF DistriCt. ... ... e 70
Schedule of Expenditures by Project — Budget and Actual ..., 71

Proprietary Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual

Salem CoNVENTION CENTET....... .. i ittt eee s s e eeeseeseeseeseeseeseeeeeeeees 72
OTHER INFORMATION

Impact on Overlapping Taxing Districts of Property Tax Levied by Urban Renewal Districts ..... 74

Urban Renewal Area Maximum Indebtedness Compliance.............coooouiiiiiiin e 74

AUDITOR’S COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
Independent Auditor’'s Report Required by Oregon State Regulations...........c.cccooovviiiiiiiiieee.o. 75

Title VI Disclosure

It is the policy of the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Salem (URA) to assure that no person shall be
discriminated against on the grounds of race, religion, color, sex, marital status, familial status, national origin, age,
mental or physical disability, sexual orientation, gender identity and source of income. The URA also fully complies
with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and related statutes and regulations, in all programs and activities.



URBAN RENEWAL AREA OF THE CITY OF SALEM

AGENCY OFFICIALS

Term
Expires
Ward No. Name December 31,

Mayor Chris Hoy 2022
1 Virginia Stapleton 2024

2 Linda Nishioka 2022

3 Trevor Phillips 2024

4 Jackie Leung 2022

5 Jose Gonzalez 2024

6 Julie Hoy 2022

7 Vanessa Nordyke 2024

8 Micki Varney 2022

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFFE

City Manager: Keith Stahley
Chief Accountant: Jennifer Mattecheck

All correspondence for persons listed above may be sent to:

City of Salem
555 Liberty St SE, Room 220
Salem, OR 97301-3513



L/ L

City of Salem

Riverfront-Downtown
Urban Renewal Area

s
Acreage: 290 Acres

SQUTH ST NE

Established: May 1975

Map Legend

D Riverfront-Downtown Urban Renewal Area

— [ | water

Streets

CORNUCOPIA

LEN CREEK RD Nw

VEALL N NW

&, MN ¥g 11314V

TAGAART DR




| [ ]

City of Salem

Fairview

Urban Renewal Area

Established: June 1984
Acreage: 390 Acres

|

Map Legend
D Fairview Urban Renewal Area Boundary

[ Jwater

— Streets

>
S
1%

BER/AL wy sg

35 9a Javne?)

EWALD AV S

N:\PW\UD\urban_renewal_areas\Fairview\Fairview-Area.mxd
L N L

ANRTO,,
(»O
\f

25TH ST SE

B DWARD DR SE
A
3
%
Y,
’V(O
,

Taxi lane T1

Jaxilane T12

Taxilane T1.

Taxilane

McNary Field
S[il]m govrt

S ad QNOH'\S

27THAV SE

~~Frmcrse

~7 7 77~ MBLIETTA o~ o
This map was created from various sources and is neither a legally
recorded map nor a survey and is not intended to be used as such
No warranty as to correctness is expressed or implied

L L 4L 3




-
M DR NE}
w
/ { I l I w BRANDON ’_’L NE | z
l LINDA AV NE =z
E 2 v 8]
L |z WIE$SNER DR NE < w ’_ 3
- I |2 K Z 3
= o I
CltyO alem % . g §lWl. 1 =
=4
> u w FALCON[§ g I
< < <
5
= Q |w ) T x
North Gateway B E e [, s e J
—~ £ =4 joq
I a B 3] S w §
w =
:| Urban Renewal Are . e s [u &
S < u % /o
< T L @
= . . i~
g| Established: December 1990 &\ = E /g
= . & S > w
Acreage: 926 Acres & 4
LA 7, A Y % &,
0, <
M Map Legend 5 9 > <
& > <)
D North Gateway Urban Renewal Area Boundary o\ s (’i " N
% Ty O o
— Streets & N 2 A
Q Y% re E3
[ ] water z S & K
5 3 3
5, o
ONSET A N S ALDERDR Z Z ] '_
> T ZA o
2 o Z 3 S Z
2 « 2 S S
B 2 %, & z S %
z 0. ) S = (’/’8‘ OR NE
g NGEWYREND  5) & g & 2
[+4 w 5] & 2y, o
w z \Z. = &
=z, —_]= = N & \Z, w >
N 3 CLEARVEW AV NE |G Z\ & S P >
I SO Z NVA m
z o0 < ol /R ~<
T = \NP‘?* » o/ /< %
© RING ST NE wo® Q ;’SU S s
& SIS
HOLLYHOCH PLN S g
SHADY LN NE & @
BEVER DR NE %, l [ &
=
= o © o S NTH sy
> T w Ky
< CADE STNE \&§ 3 5
2% canbLEwooD oR NE K>
S, Z I w
5 Z [A &, z —
m SAN CT NE 5 7 2\
EEKSDRINJ weeks bR ne \D & 2\
CARLAND Wy, z Im 5 e NE
z ™ x 2 ) &
L
> ~ > T
< APRERIGSSOM AV NE 2 NALE CT NEf =\ £
3 ® HONEYSJUCKLE WY NE W Gl B
& PLYMOUTH DR NE < z B
Ry AYSIDE TR NE - =|m
v w s —
% Bi w N =4 9
& o R z WOODDAIE AV NE & > S
. A% o Ng 2 \z E T
SHANGRI[LA AV NE 9 < 4 z 7
Tl | NORTHGATE AV NE 7 o =
AND' Y 2 EDGEWOOD AV NE =
o o By zZ
q o 2
4 & T
3 : y
STORTZ AV NE
g /;QF CARLETON WY NE 9
= N CARLETON WY NE —CARLETON WY NE, x
1%} 9 w|
z N w ol w l g
H g w Z z|l 2 T
2 <7 Z > = | 9 u
o AUTO GROUP AV NE K — 2 ¢ o gz ¢
& w — ] =
B z w H =4 § Z & g & I
2 zl > 9 = T o I -~
X > < 2 E ozl g W
m < » Ed Q g 2 L —
g a Z|  Z|FourlpoinTk ” b L —]
z < f g S NTBTNE I _—
2 = AN =z o
7 BLILER AV NE S a <
< - % a
g Ay % w
TRYON AV NE /;‘* 4*41/ | —1 ORNE z
[ ST NE A " Qe oNE < 2
W JOHNSO < L oS g 5
T A S & 3 2 5
=
e MCDONALD ST ™ e, HAMMEL ST NE
JL w
£ LodusT ST NE e z GLENDALE AV N ]
<
LI) w w X w
z z x — |y WATSON AV NE —
wlHICKORY STINE > B g > [T |z
s z \CKORY ST NE| @[ HICKORY ST NE = 5 |- WATHON AV NH]
w 0 w, N o o
z s
£ e PINE §T NE e oPoESSA LN NE —° 12 /5 —r’_
) Z = STARRCT NE |& [
z u H z KEENAVNE _|@ [u
= PR [ W ow > z
<(s RUCE ST NEZ| | £ 22 o KATHLEEN AV NE
2 i 4 — | BEVERLY AV NH)
w 4 D W o
I
w — g 335 y e = ICHESTER AV NE
2 o CE AV NE
= z < = 2 - o WILTON AV N}
%] > w 0 -/
I I = - ONARGH DR NE|
= —
— S i 2 T, 3114,7 E ; LIVINGSTO|
2 4 Z 7/\/5 o w
5 T 4, % g w z
—] ACADEMY ST|NE QLY z T ] =
w —
z ch‘L WOODROW ST NE 0 1,400 21800
-
@ > oA Feet
E " [T [N v
o BouT — d fr fous sources and is neither a legally
o SUNNYVIEW e e D] s g o unotssonce s s eyl
My /) S ,_4 N ST NE  Nowarranty as to correctness is expressed or implied. I I ,
wa " h-Gateway-Area.mxd — 1 L 1 L
N:,\PW\U,D\u'rbanJenewaliareas\Nolrth Gateway\North-Gateway .




1T 7 < ]
z
. & E
=z
1 City of Salem 2 :
= < =
14 z i}
< ¢ s
- S| TULIPLNN
West Salem R e g
-1 West Sale X 4 3
B S s 5
(e}
m
.| Urban Renewal Area . A
1
. ) = Z
Established: August 2001 3 ¢ H z
. >
Acreage: 451 Acres § S z CAMEO ST NW.
z
- z ¢ >
Map Legend & > < z
3 & 2 z
5 iy < 2— CALICO ST NW,
DWest Salem Urban Renewal Area Boundary g z z
a 5 2
— Streets z
TAYBIN RD NW [
HILLTOP DR NW
A ] waeer 2 £
z
™ x g )
7 / [a) w =]
< w Z z
Q ['q a g
3 2 o
L
CREE}\?D NW
W VEALL IN Nw
< N
B
$ IOVERVRWV ST NW MOYHR LN INW
&
<
G
B, Q W . N
URBAN LN Nw o S < %, ot OR
,L_u § 5\ B W< GAR ~
&
S
Ew eg S S5 o
NI
BON ; casChS Y 9 « S Uy sr
%(\)\ ;c Ng
AQQ z W wiifeo
£ p2 N NEXPTTE
& © 2 =S D
N 2 a =2 IS
2\ EA (S “\\fv O
< o & 2 2 /3
S 2 O z 2
< o ey \Z ® o
% T 2\ 2 (S y
& w3 S S
S 3 2 Z B>
© % «w\\ Z
g \2 = N 5
a < W ) aof =
53 > s
2 @0 &b/ [
2 P S
~,
9 SR
2 S £ (s
) < & &
[y
U&‘ ; W » 5 @N aQ
A w
«
9 OURRS
% e
8747,5
&
O, B
X A
o 3 Ly
eq\ '94/ Z rSg
Q < )
D
% o\
0\\\ $$ TR,
\/O$ &“ 405 s,
E 3
I éé
& 2
% L
LS &
/[/; /(
L
4 whh STSE
@) [2)
o A,
W [2)
o4 S 2
Q
LsefS g
I
g
S]-SE
L&,
e s, w
S 2
Missi 2
z
My, 9,
Wy ¢ I
Zbe
KEARNEY o+ ~rm
1,000 2,000
Feet
— T ' T v
This map was created from various sources and is neither a legally
recorded map nor a survey and is not intended to be used as such
N:\PW\UD\urban_renewal_areas\West Salem\West-Salem-Area.mxd | Nc'wa"anly as to correctness is expressed or implied.
1 L L




.y ECKRY SE
7 X d I | orsE ) 3237 | spogcky
VS DUYRBIN AV SE g @ &
Y a <>( 3 =
= WIFTEN STSE| Z| T §\\PJ\\‘ z
=
City of Salem olest 1L 1] At s X%
S [ cLgnwoob bR se[T S 2 o (S
o/ © °© 5 & S < %,
. AYRP SE o o 0 s &
Mill Creek - : 'z $ &K \*
& X, & P
) 23 S ¢ % Q
G \2 cek STRE o Of—5° 3 S & (j/’r N OSE )
- Urban Renewal Area P - Sy - R, &
| : 4 k s oL 1L 1lar | I NS
] Established: May 2005 B NONKERS e g w 3 e
. = o \CKE. ]
Acreage: 828 Acres o i a
c i £ = 2
>
| | Map Legend z « |5 2 = z |3
3> 1 o » B
q D Mill Creek Urban Renewal Area Boundary ¢) sk u"J | w - MACLEAYARD SE
0
Al z
—— Streets SERS o S <k 2
'/E,,? BENY z
| weeer OF 5
4%
o Ly ICCHERRY
o, & %l o
=) Ss
i3 <4
w
" (& 35(( S
L fcooL© % I
SE Se
A =} STO'\é s o
SUVASTS SYIVIACT SE 7&}%
o
&
57
B
<2 %
B o S
S A
H AT
_~McNary Field S
| 'y . Q)
Salem Airport @ &
g
AIRWAY DR s
7
4’1,/6\
42
Z,
2
&
c &
2 & X
J e W Z
5 ti %
\Z A <
e )
(2] U/?/Vg N f &
R ~
m QD 5
Se /8
&
<
MARIETTA 51 2
2 % %
g o7
L0,
; LITCHFlE(O 5% &2,
S
N ASE & Lse
TRELSTAD AV SE O,
5 2
%,
z 2
g & 2 2
2111 < z 5
allle g BOONE D SE s
= BOONE RD SE
i
=)
4
o
2]
KASHMIR WY Sg
: L
1%]
- \f
p T
lL— O ©
2 3
LA
S 3 NGLEY ST SE
3 IS £ @
i S
Inj G, of o
uj ATH ?
? = - = y R g 5
4 S T
% z £y | g ny
0
5 TMBET DR SE/2 0 2,000 4,000
i s Feet—
T v o
5 b This map was created from various sources and is neither a legally ®
ol otua T recorded map nor a survey and is not intended to be used as such
N:\PW\UD\urban_renewal_areas\Mill Creek\Mill-Creek-Area.mxd Nowarranty as to correctness is expressed of implied
L L P




m w|TRADE sT SEO(E S
LEHUEST ( 2 o 4 X
{\\k / 3! 57‘ (g’ Qs s 7] = [ON
AS i ” ISeElf > o 4
L [2)
. 5 2 fx A 5 o & OQ
4 S a o
5 S & 3
1P ¥ Iy y @
P ST SE &
T ~ ST S
1 1 o IMPSO] MPSO
cGilchrist k swesoys7 o 5
2 SIMPSY
EE S & i w w
T|SE w Q & LEE $T SE
Urban Renewal Area o o . 8oy
w g O LEESTSE [o 7
. . w ° z
Established: September 2006 - SHE[TON ST|SE & 3 N S
12
Acreage: 437 Acres uow z 9
Ma L d I 5 7 u TOWNSEND Wy §
ap Legen - DE CT SE
p-ed 5 & 3 o HYDE $T SE —
P 3
D McGilchrist Urban Renewal Area Boundary = o
ROSS $T sg N
—— Streets 1 44/5‘& LAUDE ST $E
%e)
] waer e
4 T T Lus=leeey B ILBUR[ST s¢ 2 Se
> 1
5 B @ 2 ADAM ST SE
b o
12] % g
HOWARD ST SE\| _HOWARD s1| sE T
u — £ 0 /\gf/ HELM ST SE .
HOWARID ST BE . 2 9
12} m QQ
w LEW|s sT s |z 8
o 3 LEWIS ST[SE
e
2]
>
OXFORD SJr SE x OXFORp ST SE
@
% u L OXFORD ST sSE
- OXFORD ST SE
= RURAL AV SE N w
” = ORURAL AV SE|—
7] w w &
5 @ 2 n g
a
4 & S 2 @
z o = m
z > 2 o
— y 4 5
> N o
% @ 4
HOYT $7T s, T
S 5 HPYT ST SE
I Jup
SN ST sE w
7 &
i
=]
T g "
5 & o
P 12
I
&
MCGI &
CGILCHRIST ST SE GILCHRISTT SE
i U
ONg.
G N
z w
s >
<
w —
= DAVCO| f
< %, @ 3 R ST SE o
%) O a = A\
5 Yz s 5] 19TH ST SE <i’“ ;
I = —
iy @ 8 "; ®
O ;’—) uw_’
A I =
AIRVIEW AV|SE ™ = )
&
Bl [=]
(% g
14 o~
>
N PEACE ST SE
s
po]
2
o
VISTA AV SE VISTA AV SE WBT/Q,,
=
\
VISTA AV SE
MARIJYN ST SE
WOOIACRE DR SE
w
[%2]
Z HEATHER LN SE
w
L
=}
)
HEATHER LN S HILLE| LALE DR SE SALISHAN ST SE 3
-
MORNINGSIDE S| SE B
MORNINGSIDE DR SE| )
w
0
w
w T 7]
7 T w '
> E 2 DOUGLAS AVSE a Taxi lane »
< FURRIER LN SE 2 2 1 = e,
O w Z
: ¢ : 0 1,000 2,000
z GEORGIA AV SE ] ’ Feet
o
' | ) N d- ither a legally "
This map was created from various sources and is neither a le
nd is not intended to be used as such
MADRONAKY SE No warany s 1 conbamess i evpressed or mpiea. 2 tne [12)]
S T Z
| N:\PW\UD\urban_renewal_areas\McGilchrist\McGilchrist A[ea.mxd
L




N:\PW\UD\urban_renewal_areas\So uthWaterfront\South-Waterfroanrea.nﬁxd

AP/,/SQ .
0

FAIRMOUNT Ay

JOHN ST 5

[\ = -
\Z
a \¢
. e ! \e, o ‘*\N@@o 5
Ity O Salem ¢ o o
C( . ° N\oe WP
> \% P
\ South Waterfront WA
O, Z 5y Y
Z 2 (El <
Urban Renewal Area o > D .
\Z 2
Established: October 2007 ¢ £
Acreage: 355 Acres
Map Legend
Q
DSouth Waterfront Urban Renewal Area Boundary o ;
| | — streets 5
g
[ ] water 5
W
< \Z 280> ?’“6‘
& IS
% s < Q
(S [
B Q;’ o\ « @\\?/ 77r,qrEsr
Z < /7
~ ST © s 9\’\‘4 '<‘ g
\’\}\1 T 06@\*\ OP‘\’\’ @@ ;\
> ?‘ 2\
P
o
E
b\
Ul
m

X
SUES
Sg,
MISSION sT 5
M.
/O/V s
Lse
KeArnil TS KEARNEY ST SE
BUSH sT
BUSH FT Sg
WENS ST
g OWENSST g

w
2
0 =
= 12
MILLER sTS 2 I

Q Mi 4

E: l‘f LLER|ST sg %)

% 8 5

WILSOQ ST 5 *

ILSON ST sE
MYERS T s
! MYERS|ST sg
1,600 ]
Feet

T LEree -
0 800

FAIRMOUNT Ay

LINCOLN

. . ]
This map was created from various sources and is neither a legally
recorded map nor a survey and is not intended to be used as such
' CR(QSS ST SH

No warranty as to correctness is expressed or implied
L




‘payqiyosd s ajesal 10 uoyNqu}sIp
Jayyny pue suonejiwi 3yb6uAdos pue asusdl| 03 Joalqgns si Jonpoid
S1y1 "3onpoud sy} 40 asn ay} wouy sabewep 1oy s|qel| wajes 30 A9
3y} S13UaAs ou u| "Ajueliem Inoyym ‘s se papiaoad st jonpoud siyL

spwIT AiQ apisino
1o13sIa dI11 syuswpedy Aior (g

¥3IN3O

ENINA

r

aNisa

3N dd IOVAVS

juswyiedaq JuswdojaAaQ ueqin wales

JDIAYIS ¥NOA LV,

40 ALD

Jo}sig dIL sjuswipedy Aior




Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

475 Cottage Street NE, Suite 200, Salem, OR 97301
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Agency Officials
Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Salem
Salem, Oregon

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and
each major fund of the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Salem, Oregon (a component unit of the City of Salem,
Oregon), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the Urban Renewal Agency of
the City of Salem, Oregon, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Agency and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions

Responsibilities of Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months
beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly
thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user based on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Agency’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the
audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s discussion and
analysis (MD&A) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Agency’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information as listed in the table of contents is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not required parts of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information Included in the Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the
agency officials, maps of urban renewal areas, and other information section but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do
not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other
information and the financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are
required to describe it in our report.
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Other Reporting Required by Oregon Minimum Standards

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report dated
January 31, 2023, on our consideration of the Agency’s compliance with certain provisions of laws and regulations,
including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on
compliance.

GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

By M

Ryan T. Pasquarella, A Shareholder
January 31, 2023

12



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

This discussion and analysis of the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Salem (Agency) financial
performance provides an overview of the Agency’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the basic financial statements and the
accompanying notes to the financial statements.

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented herein include all the activities of the Agency using the
integrated approach as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for
State and Local Governments. The government-wide financial statements present the financial
picture of the Agency from the economic resource’s measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. These statements include all assets of the Agency as well as all liabilities, including
long-term debt. Additionally, certain eliminations have occurred as prescribed by Statement No.
34 regarding payables and receivables. The fund financial statements for governmental activities
are prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Reconciliation of the governmental fund financial statements to the
government-wide financial statements is provided to explain the differences created by the
integrated approach. Fund financial statements for the proprietary fund are reported in the same
manner as the government-wide statements.

REPORTING ON THE AGENCY AS A WHOLE

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities report financial information about the
Agency as a whole and about its activities. These statements include all assets and deferred
outflows of the Agency, as well as all liabilities and deferred inflows (including long-term debt)
using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-
sector companies. All the current year’s revenues earned and expenses incurred are recorded
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Agency’s net position and the change in net position. Net position
is the residual of assets plus deferred outflows less liabilities and deferred inflows and is one way
to measure the Agency’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases
in the Agency’s net position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating. Other factors to consider are changes in the Agency’s property tax base as well as
the assessed values in the urban renewal areas. In these statements, all Agency activities are
categorized as either governmental or business-type.

Governmental activities — Most of the Agency’s activities are reported in this category, which
includes capital projects and applicable debt service associated with the eight urban renewal
project areas, and a reserve fund for the Salem Convention Center (Convention Center).

Business-type activities — The Convention Center’s activities are reported in this category.
The Convention Center charges fees to customers to cover the cost of services provided.
REPORTING ON THE AGENCY’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Agency uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Governmental funds — The Agency’s construction and debt service activities and Convention
Center gain/loss reserve are reported in governmental funds. These funds focus on how money
flows into and out of funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These
funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual, which measures cash
and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Agency’s operations. Governmental fund
information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent
in the near future to finance the Agency’s programs. The reconciliation of differences between the
governmental fund financial statements and the government-wide financial statements are
explained in a section following the governmental fund statements.

Proprietary fund — The Convention Center charges customers for services provided, whether to
outside customers or to other units of the City of Salem (City). This activity is reported in a
proprietary fund. The proprietary fund is reported using the accrual basis of accounting which
focuses on the changes in economic resources. This is the method used in the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.

FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES OF THE AGENCY AS A WHOLE
Government-wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position compared to the prior year.

Statement of Net Position as of June 30,

(in millions)
Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 676 $ 592 $ 09 $ 07 $ 685 $ 599
Other assets 3.2 3.8 (0.3) 0.0 29 3.8
Capital assets 19.2 15.6 23.9 24.5 43.1 40.1
Total assets 90.0 78.6 24.5 25.2 114.5 103.8
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 2.5 2.3 0.4 0.7 2.9 3.0
Noncurrent liabilities 15.5 17.3 - - 15.5 17.3
Total liabilities 18.0 19.6 04 0.7 18.4 20.3
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 8.2 6.9 23.9 245 321 314
Restricted
Tax allocation debt 6.0 6.2 - - 6.0 6.2
Tax allocation improvements 54.0 41.7 - - 54.0 41.7
Convention Center gain/loss reserve 3.8 4.2 - - 3.8 4.2
Unrestricted - - 0.2 - 0.2 -
Total net position $ 720 $ 590 $ 2441 $ 245 $ 9641 $ 835

For more detailed information, see the Statement of Net Position (page 23).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Governmental Activities

The Agency’s net position from governmental activities increased 22.0%, from $59.0 million to

$72.0 million. The change is primarily composed of the following:

e Cash and investments increased $8.4 million. The largest increase was in the capital
projects fund due to short-term loan proceeds exceeding project expenses by $8.9 million.
Debt service fund cash decreased by $0.5 million due to debt service expenditures and
the transfer of short-term loan proceeds to the capital projects fund exceeding property

tax receipts.

e Capital assets increased $3.6 million, primarily due to construction-in-progress increases
in the Riverfront and McGilchrist areas as large projects continue.

e Long term debt decreased $1.5 million due to scheduled debt service.

Business-type Activities

Net position from business-type activities decreased 1.6% from $24.5 million, to $24.1 million.
The Convention Center experienced an operating loss of $0.4 million due to convention bookings
beginning to recover after the pandemic closure.

Statement of Activities

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Activities compared to prior year.

Statement of Activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,

(in millions)
Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Revenues
Charge for services $ 05 $ 0.1 $ 25 $ 03 $ 30 $ 04
Capital grants and contributions 11 0.7 - - 1.1 0.7
Taxes 16.9 15.8 - - 16.9 15.8
Interest 0.6 0.8 - - 0.6 0.8
Other - 0.1 - - - 0.1
Total revenues 191 17.5 25 0.3 21.6 17.8
Program expenses 6.1 6.3 2.9 1.2 9.0 7.5
Increase (decrease) in net position
before special items and transfers 13.0 11.2 (0.4) (0.9) 12.6 10.3
Transfers to/from primary government - (5.8) - 1.3 - (4.5)
Increase (decrease) in net position 13.0 54 (0.4) 0.4 12.6 5.8
Beginning net position 59.0 53.6 24.5 23.0 83.5 76.6
Prior period adjustment - - - 1.1 - 1.1
Ending net position $ 720 $ 590 § 241 $ 245 § 96.1 $ 835

For more detailed information, see the Statement of Activities (page 24).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Governmental Activities

The Agency’s change in net position from governmental activities increased from a gain of $5.4
million last year to a gain of $13.0 million this year, primarily due to short-term loan proceeds
exceeding construction expenditures.

Business-type Activities

The Agency’s change in net position from business-type activities decreased from positive $0.4
million last year to negative $0.4 million this year, caused by the Convention Center operating
loss.

Fund Financial Statements

The following table presents ending fund balances of governmental funds compared to the prior
year.

Governmental Funds - Fund Balances as of June 30, 2022

(in millions)

FY 2021-22 Compared to FY 2020-21

Percent of Increase / (Decrease)

Major Funds Amount Total Amount Percent
Tax Allocation Debt $ 5.8 86% $ (0.3) -4.9%
Tax Allocation Improvements 58.2 85.8% 8.8 17.8%
Convention Center gain/loss reserve 3.8 5.6% (0.4) -9.5%

Total fund balances $ 67.8 100.0% $ 8.1

On June 30, 2022, the Agency’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $67.8
million, an increase of $8.1 million from the prior year.

Tax Allocation Debt Fund

This fund is a debt service fund that accounts for the accumulation of resources for the payment
of urban renewal long-term liabilities. The principal source of revenue is property taxes.

The Tax Allocation Debt fund decreased by $0.3 million. Property tax receipts were exceeded by
debt service expenditure and transfer of short-term loan proceeds to the construction fund.

The June 30, 2022 fund balance of $5.8 million is restricted for future debt service.
Tax Allocation Improvements Fund

This fund is a capital projects fund that accounts for construction improvement projects within the
urban renewal areas. Financing is provided by debt issuance and interest income. Primary
expenditures are for capital projects, grants, studies, and loans to private parties for capital asset
improvements within urban renewal areas.

The Tax Allocation Improvements fund increased by $8.8 million, a net of short-term loan
issuance of $15.1 million, other revenues of $2.5 million, and lower than usual project
expenditures of $8.7 million. Construction expenditures overall were $3.6 million less than last
year, which in turn was significantly lower than previous years. The most significant changes were
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

seen in the Riverfront and North Gateway areas with construction expenditures below the
issuance of short-term loans. Riverfront expenditures were similar to last year other than last
year’s large purchase of property. North Gateway saw reduced expenditures as Portland Road
projects came to completion.

The June 30, 2022 fund balance of $58.2 million is restricted for urban renewal projects.

Salem Convention Center Gain/Loss Reserve Fund

This fund is a capital projects fund established to support the capital needs of the Convention
Center.

Salem Convention Center Gain/Loss Reserve fund had a $0.4 million decrease for the year due
to expenditures on the Convention Center kitchen remodel and no net operating income to
receive from the Convention Center.

The June 30, 2022 fund balance of $3.8 million is restricted for future Convention Center capital
needs.

Salem Convention Center Fund

This fund is a proprietary fund that accounts for the operation and maintenance of the Convention
Center. Financing is provided mainly from user fees.

Net position decreased $0.4 million due to the Center’s operating loss.
Budgetary Highlights

There were no changes to the original adopted budget.

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2022, the Agency had $43.1 million in capital assets. This represents a net increase
of $3.0 million from the prior year. The change is primarily reflected in construction-in-progress
balances. Riverfront increased by $1.0 million in downtown streetscape projects and $0.5 million
related to acquisition of downtown properties for redevelopment. McGilchrist increased $1.5
million related to acquisition of rights-of-way for future street improvement projects.

The Agency’s change in capital assets is reflected in the following table:

Capital Assets as of June 30,

(Net of Depreciation)
(in millions)

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary

Activities Activities Government
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Land $ 42 § 42 % 15 § 1.5 $ 57 $ 57
Buildings - - 19.4 201 194 20.1
Improvements - - 25 0.1 2.5 0.1
Equipment and machinery - - 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.2
Public art - - 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2
Work in progress 15.0 11.4 - 24 15.0 13.8
192 $ 156 $ 239 $ 245 $ 431 $ 401
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Change in Capital Assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

(in millions)

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
Beginning balance $ 15.6 $ 24.5 $ 40.1
Additions 3.6 2.6 6.2
Retirement and depreciation - (3.2) (3.2)
Ending balance $ 19.2 $ 239 $ 43.1

For more detailed information on capital assets, see page 40 of the notes to the financial
statements.

Debt Outstanding

As of June 30, 2022, the Agency had $17.4 million in long-term debt outstanding, compared to
$18.9 million last year. The decrease of $1.5 million was due to scheduled debt service.

Outstanding Debt as of June 30,

(in millions)

Totals
2022 2021
Governmental:
Bonds $ 9.5 $ 10.6
Notes 7.9 8.3
Total $ 17.4 $ 18.9

For more detailed information on debt, see page 41-42 of the notes to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

The Agency is an important partner in economic development within the City of Salem, providing
infrastructure improvements and loan programs to support growth and quality of service to those
within the Agency’s boundaries. As assessed property values within the boundaries of the Agency
increase, so do the property taxes derived from the corresponding tax increment. That tax
increment is then used to pay debt service on bonds issued to fund projects and improvements.

In fiscal year 2021-22, urban renewal taxes were collected through two methods. Under the tax
increment or “division of taxes” method, the amount of tax collected is based on the increase in
Assessed Value (AV) of property located in an urban renewal area over the “frozen base” value
established at the time the district was formed. The tax collected from within a district may only
be spent on urban renewal activity within that district. Certain urban renewal areas collect
additional taxes through a citywide special levy, which is identified as such on tax bills. These
taxes also must be spent only on urban renewal activity in the district for which the taxes are
collected. The division of taxes rate and the special levy rate by urban renewal area are shown in
the following table.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Division of Taxes Special Levy

Urban Renewal Area Rate/$1,000 AV Rate/$1,000 AV
Riverfront/Downtown $ 0.1099 $ 0.2339
North Gateway 0.1104 none
West Salem 0.0437 none

Mill Creek Industrial Park 0.0484 none
McGilchrist 0.0310 none
South Waterfront 0.0130 none

Jory 0.0004 none

FINANCIAL CONTACT

The Agency’s financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers,
investors, and creditors) with an overview of the Agency’s finances, and to demonstrate the
Agency’s accountability. If you have questions about the report or need additional financial
information, please contact the City’s Finance Division at 555 Liberty Street SE, Room 230,
Salem, Oregon 97301.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON

(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable, net
Internal balances
Inventories and prepayments

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Notes receivable
Capital assets
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Long-term debt - due within one year

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Long-term debt

Total liabilities

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Tax allocation debt
Tax allocation improvements
Convention Center gain/loss reserve
Unrestricted

Total net position

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
67,581,038 $ 929,320 68,510,358
672,745 189,633 862,378
508,359 (508,359) -
- 45,566 45,566
68,762,142 656,160 69,418,302
2,109,274 - 2,109,274
19,172,178 1,695,198 20,867,376
- 22,210,685 22,210,685
21,281,452 23,905,883 45,187,335
90,043,594 24,562,043 114,605,637
702,025 443,434 1,145,459
1,793,144 - 1,793,144
2,495,169 443,434 2,938,603
15,525,501 - 15,525,501
18,020,670 443,434 18,464,104
8,246,083 23,905,883 32,151,966
5,989,787 - 5,989,787
53,982,861 - 53,982,861
3,804,193 - 3,804,193
- 212,726 212,726
72,022,924 $ 24,118,609 96,141,533

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

23



"SJuswale]s |eloueul) 8y o Med [eibajul ue ase sajou BulAuedwoaoe ay |

€eg'LlyL'96  $ 609'8LL'YC $  ¥26'C20CL $ Jeak jo pus - uonisod joN
¥€G6'G¥G'€8 606'605 ¢ GZ9'GE0'6S Jeak jo Bujuuibaq - uonisod jaN
666'G6S5°C) (00g‘16¢) 662°.86°C1 uonisod jau uj abueyd
66676521 - 666765 Ll slajsuel) pue sanudaAal |eiauab |ejo |
210229 - 21029 sBulules jJusw)saAu|
186'21691 - 186'21691 soxe) Apadold
S9NU3A3I |elduUdn
(000'666't) (00g‘1L6€) (002°'209't) 90220k $ €9v'szoe 699°'L0L'6  $ juswuianoh Arewnd |ejo
(00€°16€) (oog‘L6€) - - 61896 611'826'C 1ajus) uonUBAUOD wWeles
saniAnoe adA} - ssauisng
(00£°209't) - (002°209't) 902220t ¥v9'88Y 0SS‘€/L‘9 sallAOe [ejuswiulanob |ejo
(#59'899) - (#59°899) - - ¥59'895 198p wus)-buo| uo 1saleyu|
(9%0'6£0t) $ - ¢ (9¥0'6£0't) $ 90Z°'2/0'L ¢ P¥¥9'ssy 968'709'G ¢ [emaual uegin
SOI}IAIJOE |BJUBWIUIBAOSD)
jusawuianob fiewnd
|elol SaljIAlOY SaljIAlOY suoljnquuon S9JIAIOS sasuadxg sweaboad/suorouny
adfy-ssauisng |eJUBWIUIBAOL) /sjueln 1o} sabieyn
JusWIUIdA0D Altewlid [eyden

uoljisod }oN ul sabueyn

pue anuaAay (asuadx3) }JoN

sanuanay welbolid

z202 ‘0& eunp papus Jeak |eosiy ayj 10

S9IHAIOY jO juswajels
(uobauQ ‘wajes jo A9 ayj jo yun Jusuodwor y)
NODI¥HO ‘NI TVS 40 ALID FHL 40 ADNIOV TVMIANTY Nvadn

24



URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
June 30, 2022

Debt Service Capital Projects
Tax Tax Salem Convention
Allocation Allocation Center Gain/Loss
Debt Improvements Reserve Totals
Assets
Cash and investments $ 5,639,577 $ 58,645,628 $ 3,295,833 $ 67,581,038
Accounts receivable, net 553,830 118,915 - 672,745
Notes receivable - 2,109,274 - 2,109,274
Due from other funds - - 508,360 508,360
Total assets $ 6,193,407 $ 60,873,817 $ 3,804,193 $ 70,871,417
Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ~ $ - $ 498,405 $ - $ 498,405
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue 422,901 2,109,415 - 2,532,316
Fund balances
Restricted for
Debt Service 5,770,506 - - 5,770,506
Capital Projects - 58,265,997 3,804,193 62,070,190
Total fund balances 5,770,506 58,265,997 3,804,193 67,840,696
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 6,193,407 $ 60,873,817 $ 3,804,193
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the
funds (net of accumulated depreciation) 19,172,178
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-
period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds:
Notes receivable - earned but unavailable 2,109,415
Property taxes - earned but unavailable 422,901
Accrued interest on long-term debt (203,621)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due
and payable in the current period and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds

(17,318,645)

Total net position $

72,022,924

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

Revenues
Property taxes
Interest on investments
Grants
Intergovernmental
Loan payments received
Rents
Other

Total revenues
Expenditures
Materials and services
Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

Debt Service

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Capital Projects

Tax Tax Salem Convention
Allocation Allocation Center Gain/Loss
Debt Improvements Reserve Totals
16,854,620 $ - % - 16,854,620
156,548 482,019 38,445 677,012
- 1,077,206 - 1,077,206
- 432,834 - 432,834
- 482,863 - 482,863
- 28,434 - 28,434
- - 17,690 17,690
17,011,168 2,503,356 56,135 19,570,659
- 8,688,119 464,432 9,152,551
1,587,256 - - 1,587,256
706,929 - - 706,929
2,294,185 8,688,119 464,432 11,446,736
14,716,983 (6,184,763) (408,297) 8,123,923
- 15,100,000 - 15,100,000
(15,100,000) - - (15,100,000)
(15,100,000) 15,100,000 - -
(383,017) 8,915,237 (408,297) 8,123,923
6,153,523 49,350,760 4,212,490 59,716,773
5,770,506 $ 58,265,997 $ 3,804,193 67,840,696

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 8,123,923

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. This represents the increase/decrease in
expenses that reflects the change in capital assets, change in construction in
progress, and capitalized capital outlay.
Acquisition of capital assets 3,547,655

Revenues in the government-wide Statement of Activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Change in deferred inflows for general revenue 63,367
Change in deferred inflows for program revenue (473,177)

Debt issuance provides current financial resources and debt service payments use
current financial resources in governmental funds. Neither transaction affects the
government-wide net position since long-term debt is reported as a liability.
Principal payments on long-term debt 1,587,256

Accrued interest expense on long-term debt is reported in the government-wide
Statement of Activities, but does not require the use of current financial resources
and is not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. 138,275

Change in net position $ 12,987,299

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)

Proprietary Fund
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories and prepayments

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Total liabilities
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

Salem
Convention
Center

$ 929,320
189,633
45,566

1,164,519

1,695,198
22,210,685

23,905,883

25,070,402

443,434
508,359

951,793

23,905,883
212,726

$ 24,118,609

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)

Proprietary Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Operating revenues
Sales
Rents
Other
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Materials and services
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Other revenue (expenses)

Change in net position

Net position - beginning of year

Net position - end of year

Salem
Convention
Center

$

1,650,553
882,166
4,100

2,536,819

2,153,760
736,930

2,890,690

(353,871)

(37,429)

(391,300)

24,509,909

$

24,118,609

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON

(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)

Proprietary Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories and prepayments
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Salem
Convention
Center

$ 2,694,105
(2,262,977)

431,128

(111,023)

320,105

609,215

$ 929,320

$ (353,871)

736,930

(186,622)
(23,673)
258,364

$ 431,128

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Salem, Oregon (Agency)
have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as
applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
standards.

The more significant of the Agency’s accounting policies are described below.

The Financial Reporting Entity

The Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Salem is a municipal corporation created by Oregon
statute and activated by the Salem City Council (Council). The Council elected to have the Agency
exercise its powers and engage in urban renewal activity within the boundaries of the City. The
Council has been designated as the governing body of the Agency and acts in that capacity. The
Agency develops urban renewal plans that must be approved by the Agency Board and Council.
Pursuant to Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 457.210(3), the City has been delegated
responsibility for fiscal matters of the Agency related to the planning and construction of urban
renewal projects. The tax increment collections resulting from the division of taxes under ORS
457.420 are used to retire any indebtedness incurred to finance urban renewal projects.

The Agency is governed by a nine-member board of directors that include the City’s mayor and
other council members and is included as a component unit in the City’s financial statements.

Urban Renewal Areas

Tax allocation bonds for urban renewal plan areas are authorized by state law to 1) “...eliminate
and prevent the development or spread of urban blight and deterioration; and 2) encourage
needed urban conservation and rehabilitation and provide for redevelopment of blighted or
deteriorated areas.”

Projects are financed in urban renewal plan areas as follows:

» The County Assessor “freezes” the assessed value of property within the urban renewal
area when the area is established. This is referred to as the “frozen value.”

* Any increase in assessed value above the frozen value is called the “incremental value.”
The tax revenue generated by the tax rate times the incremental value is used to pay the
principal and interest on any indebtedness incurred by the Urban Renewal Agency to
finance urban renewal projects.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements report information on all activities of the Agency. As a
general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the expenses of a given function
are offset by program revenues. Program revenues include (1) fines, fees, and charges to
customers who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by
a given function or program, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or program. Grants and contributions
not restricted are reported as general revenues rather than program revenues. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are also reported as general revenues.

Fund financial statements are provided for all governmental and proprietary funds.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured by a fund. Basis of accounting refers to
when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial
statements.

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All assets and liabilities are
included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net
position. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Current assets, deferred
outflows, current liabilities, and deferred inflows are included in the Balance Sheet. The Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances presents increases and decreases in
fund balances. Revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual (both measurable and
available). Measurable means the amount of the transaction can be determined. Available means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter (60 days) to be used to liquidate
liabilities of the current period. Expenditures other than interest on long-term obligations are
recorded when a liability is incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s primary ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the Convention Center are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds finance all the construction and debt service functions of the Agency, as well
as provide a reserve fund for the Salem Convention Center. The following are the Agency’s major
fund types.

Tax Allocation Debt Fund

The Tax Allocation Debt fund is a debt service fund that accounts for the accumulation of tax
increment collections assessed on property and the payment of principal and interest on debt.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Tax Allocation Improvements Fund

The Tax Allocation Improvements fund is a capital projects fund that accounts for construction
improvement projects in the Urban Renewal areas. Financing is provided by debt issuance and
interest income.

Salem Convention Center Gain/Loss Reserve Fund

The Convention Center gain/loss reserve fund is a capital projects fund that accounts for
resources accumulated to finance the capital asset needs of the Center and address any operating
deficits that may arise.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds record the business-type activities of the Agency. Revenues are expected to
offset expenses. The Salem Convention Center fund is the only proprietary fund of the Agency
and accounts for the operations of the Center.

Cash and Investments

The City of Salem (City) maintains a cash and investment pool for all City funds, including funds
of the Agency. Interest earned on the pooled cash and investments is allocated based on each
fund’s average cash and investments balance as a proportion of the City’s total.

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, proprietary funds consider all highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

The City’s investment policy is governed by ORS. The statutes authorize the City and component
units to invest primarily in U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. Government agency issues, U.S.
Instrumentality debt, certain bonded obligations of municipalities, bank repurchase agreements,
bankers’ acceptances, high-grade corporate bonds and commercial paper, collateralized deposit
accounts, and the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).

It is the City’s policy to report all short-term, highly liquid money market investments with a
remaining maturity of one year or less at time of purchase at amortized cost, which approximates
fair value. Investments with a remaining maturity at time of purchase of more than one year are
valued at fair value in accordance with GASB Statements 31 and 72.

Receivables and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Property tax receivables that have been collected within 60 days subsequent to year-end are
considered measurable and available and are recognized as revenues. All other property tax
receivables are offset by deferred inflows of resources, and accordingly, have not been recorded
as revenue in the fund financial statements. Real and personal property taxes are levied upon all
taxable property within the urban renewal areas and become liens against the property as of July
1 of each year and are payable in three installments that are due on November 15, February 15,
and May 15. Discounts are allowed if the amount due is received by November 15. Taxes not
collected by May 15 are considered delinquent. In the government-wide financial statements,
taxes are recognized as revenue when levied.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Notes receivable are recorded as receivables when loaned, are offset by deferred inflows of
resources, and accordingly, not recorded as revenue in the funds until payments are received.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. In the governmental fund statements, capital
outlays are charged to expenditures as purchased. Governmental capital assets are reported only
on the government-wide statement of net position. In the proprietary fund statements, capital
assets are reported on the statement of net position.

Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $10,000 ($2,000
for the Convention Center) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Additions or
improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset, or
significantly increase the capacity of an asset, are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and
maintenance are expensed.

Construction-in-progress represents amounts expended to date on construction projects that are
not yet complete.

Itis the Agency'’s practice to transfer capital assets to the City when projects are completed, except
for assets of the Convention Center.

Debt

Long-term debt is reported in the Statement of Net Position as noncurrent liabilities. The
governmental fund financial statements do not report long-term debt because it does not require
the use of current financial resources.

Tax increment bonds are direct obligations of the Urban Renewal Agency and are payable solely
from tax increment revenues. The Agency issues tax increment bonds specific to each urban
renewal area to provide funds for projects within the respective area.

Net Position

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation.
Net position is categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Net
position is the residual of assets and deferred outflows, less liabilities and deferred inflows.

Budget and Budgetary Accounting

A budget is prepared for each fund in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting
for all funds. Appropriations are made by expenditure type for all funds. Expenditures may not
legally exceed appropriations. Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Budget amounts
include original approved amounts and all subsequent appropriation transfers approved by the
Agency Board. The budget for the funds includes capital outlay expenditures in each program for
capital outlays applicable to that program.

After budget approval, the Agency Board may approve supplemental appropriations if an
occurrence, condition, or need exists that was not identified at the time the budget was adopted.
Management may not amend the budget. A supplemental budget requires hearings before the
public, publication in newspapers, and approval by the Agency Board.

36



URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The Agency’s cash and investments are comprised of the following as of June 30, 2022:

Book Value
Deposits with City of Salem $ 15,767,937
Investments 52,742,421
Total cash and investments $ 68,510,358

1. Deposits

In the case of deposits, there is a custodial credit risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Agency will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. All Agency deposits are held by the City
of Salem, which is covered by the State of Oregon Public Funds Collateralization Program. At
June 30, 2022, the Agency’s deposits in City bank accounts have a book value of $15,767,937.

2. Investments

As of June 30, 2022, the Agency held the following investments and maturities:

Weighted avg. % of
Fair maturity investment
Investment type Value in months portfolio
Local Government Investment Pool $ 52,204,449 0.033 100.0%

Weighted average maturity in months assumes that all investments are held to maturity.

Agency funds are invested by the City on behalf of the Agency. The City’s investment policies are
governed by state statutes, which authorize the City to invest primarily in general obligations of
the U.S. Government and its agencies, certain municipal and corporate bonds, bank repurchase
agreements, bankers' acceptances, certain commercial paper, and the State Treasurer's Local
Government Investment Pool (LGIP), among others. The LGIP is a portion of the Oregon Short
Term Fund (OSTF). This fund is not registered with the US Securities and Exchange Commission,
but is governed by ORS, the Oregon Investment Council, and the OSTF Board. The fair value of
the fund is the same as the value of the pool shares.

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses caused by changing interest rates, the
City’s investment policy limits investments as shown below:
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Maximum % Maximum length

Investment type of portfolio to maturity
Bankers' acceptances 20% 6 months
Certificates of deposit 25% 2 years
Commercial paper } 35% 9 months
Corporate indebtedness 5 years
Local government investment pool 100% * N/A
Municipal Debt 10% 5 years
Repurchase agreements 10% 3 months
U.S. agency securities 100% 5 years
U.S. Instrumentality Debt 100% 5 years
U.S. Treasuries 100% 5 years

*Dollar amount limited by ORS 294.810. As of June 30, 2022 this limit is $52,713,000.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
to a transaction, the Agency will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City’s investment policy requires
broker/dealers to meet certain qualifications and that all investments are delivered to and held by
a third-party custodian, which holds the funds in the City’s name. All investments, except for the
investment in the LGIP, which is not evidenced by securities, are held in safekeeping by the
financial institution counterparty or by its trust department in the City’s name.

As of June 30, 2022, the credit risk for the Agency’s investments is as follows:

Fair Credit Concentration
Investment type Value Risk Risk
Local Government Investment Pool $ 52,204,449 Unrated 100.0%

The Agency’s policy, which adheres to State of Oregon law, is to limit its investments to the
following: issuers within Oregon must be rated A (bonds) or A-2/P-2 (commercial paper) or better
by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s, or any other nationally recognized statistical rating organization.
Issuers not in Oregon must be rated AA/Aa (bonds) or A-1/P-1 (commercial paper) or better.

RECEIVABLES
Receivables for governmental funds as of June 30, 2022 are as follows:
Tax Tax
Allocation Allocation
Debt Improvements Totals
Accounts receivable $ - $ 118,773 $ 118,773
Property taxes 553,709 - 553,709
Interest 121 142 263
Notes receivable - 2,109,274 2,109,274
Total $ 553,830 $ 2,228,189 $ 2,782,019

Salem Convention Center accounts receivable balance as of June 30, 2022, is $227,062.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

PROPERTY TAXES

Fiscal Balances Balances
Year of July 1, 2021-22 Adjustments Collections June 30,

Levy 2021 Levy To Date To Date 2022
2021-22  $ - $ 17279359 $§ (498,136) $ 16,478,790 $ 302,433
2020-21 281,969 - (69,941) 104,382 107,646
2019-20 119,791 - (2,008) 49,333 68,450
2018-19 64,018 - (1,580) 33,552 28,886
2017-18 24,687 - 11,112 26,055 9,744
2016-17 9,096 - 6,183 9,167 6,112
2015-16 5,981 - 14,718 16,735 3,964
All Prior 30,174 - 14,939 18,639 26,474

$ 535716 $ 17,279,359 § (524,713) $ 16,736,653 $ 553,709

Ensuing Year’s Levies

Property tax levies for the year beginning July 1, 2022 are as follows:

The Riverfront/Downtown and North Gateway plan areas will use 100% of their authority under
option one of ORS 457.435(2)(a) for the retirement of debt obligations.

The Riverfront/Downtown plan area will continue its special levy for the retirement of debt
obligations.

The Fairview plan area will not levy for the 2022-23 fiscal year.

West Salem plan area will levy 100% of the amount of its authority under the standard rate plan
of ORS 457.445(2) for the retirement of debt obligations.

The Mill Creek Industrial Park, McGilchrist and South Waterfront plan areas will each levy 100%
of the amount of their authority under the reduced rate plan of ORS 457.445(1) for the retirement
of debt obligations.

Jory plan area will use 100% of its authority under the permanent rate plan of ORS 580 for the
retirement of debt obligations.

NOTES RECEIVABLE

Riverfront/Downtown
Loan repayments are receivable in monthly or annual installments; interest
rates range from 0% to 6%. Notes are secured by the underlying
renewal project improvements or land sold. $ 2,047,007

North Gateway
Loan repayments are receivable in monthly or annual installments; interest
rates range from 0% to 3%. Notes are secured by the underlying
renewal project improvements or land sold. 62,267

$ 2,109,274
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

CAPITAL ASSETS
Beginning Ending
Governmental activities Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Land and land improvements $ 4220731 § - $ - $ 4,220,731
Construction in progress 11,403,791 3,547,656 - 14,951,447
Governmental activities
capital assets, net $ 15624522 $ 3547656 9 - $ 19,172,178
Business-type activities
Land and land improvements $ 1,500,646 $ - $ - $ 1,500,646
Public art 173,477 21,075 - 194,552
Construction in progress 2,417,446 37,080 (2,454,526) -
Total non-depreciable 4,091,569 58,155 (2,454,526) 1,695,198
Buildings and building improvements 30,368,457 - - 30,368,457
Other improvements 254,161 2,442,330 - 2,696,491
Equipment and machinery 1,453,693 65,064 - 1,518,757
Total depreciable 32,076,311 2,507,394 - 34,583,705
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings and building improvements  (10,268,061) (643,802) - (10,911,863)
Improvements (180,693) (26,714) - (207,407)
Equipment and machinery (1,187,336) (66,414) - (1,253,750)
Total accumulated depreciation (11,636,090) (736,930) - (12,373,020)
Business-type activities
capital assets, net $ 24531790 $ 1828619 $ (2,454,526) $ 23,905,883

TRANSFERS

Transfers are used to: 1) move revenues from the fund with collection authority to the fund in
which the expenditure is required by budget or statute or, 2) move unrestricted revenues to finance
programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorization.

Debt proceeds are receipted into the Capital Projects fund for construction funding, and all debt is
repaid by the Debt Service fund. Transfers are the GAAP accounting classification used to move
short-term debt from the Capital Projects fund to the Debt Service fund for reporting purposes
(reported as transfer of cash from Debt Service fund to Capital Projects fund).
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

SHORT-TERM DEBT

Balance Balance

July 1, 2021 Additions Reductions June 30, 2022
Riverfront, 2022 $ - $ 6500000 $ 6500000 $ -
North Gateway, 2022 - 4,500,000 4,500,000 -
West Salem, 2022 - 1,800,000 1,800,000 -
Mill Creek, 2022 - 800,000 800,000 -
McGilchrist, 2022 - 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
South Waterfront, 2022 - 500,000 500,000 -

Total $ $ 15,100,000 $ 15,100,000 $ -

LONG-TERM DEBT

Transactions for the year ended June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Balances Balances
July 1, June 30, Due in
2021 Reductions 2022 One Year
Direct borrowing tax increment bonds
Riverfront/Downtown, Series 2009
Dated Sep 17, 2009, 4.35%. $ 920,000 $ 295000 $ 625,000 $ 305,000
Riverfront/Downtown, Series 2020A
Dated Dec 7, 2021, 1.66%. 7,445,000 - 7,445,000 -
Riverfront/Downtown, Series 2020B
Dated Dec 7, 2021, 1.75%. 2,223,000 829,000 1,394,000 918,000
Direct borrowing notes
Mill Creek, OR Econ & Comm Dev
Dept, Series 2007, LO6001A 3,317,901 240,158 3,077,743 250,749
Mill Creek, OR Econ & Comm Dev
Dept, Series 2007, LO6001C 5,000,000 223,098 4,776,902 319,395

$ 18905901 § 1,587,256 $ 17,318,645 $ 1,793,144

Governmental activity urban renewal bonds

Urban renewal bonds are special obligations of the Agency and are payable solely from tax
increment revenues. The Agency issues bonds to provide funds for urban renewal projects within
designated project areas.

In accordance with bond covenants, the Agency has established reserves for bond issuances
within its debt service fund as follows:

Reserve
Riverfront/Downtown, series 2009 $ 335,255
Riverfront/Downtown, series 2020A 744,500
Riverfront/Downtown, series 2020B 222,300
Total debt service reserves $ 1,302,055

41



URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Governmental activity notes

The Agency issues notes to provide funds for urban renewal projects within designated project
areas. The Agency’s currently outstanding notes primarily funded economic development and
wetland mitigation in the Mill Creek Industrial Park urban renewal area. Mill Creek tax increment
revenues are pledged to repay the notes, which were directly borrowed from the Oregon
Economic Development and Community Development Department (known as Business Oregon).
In the event of default, Business Oregon could demand immediate payment of all outstanding
balances.

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Riverfront/Downtown Mill Creek Industrial Park Totals
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

202223 $§ 1,223,000 $ 175169 $ 570,144 $ 322,984 $ 1,793,144 $ 498,153

2023-24 1,254,000 145,837 593,723 299,404 1,847,723 445,241
2024-25 950,000 115,984 618,280 274,848 1,568,280 390,832
2025-26 965,000 100,214 643,855 249,272 1,608,855 349,486
2026-27 981,000 84,195 670,493 222,634 1,651,493 306,829
2027-32 4,091,000 171,163 3,801,748 673,249 7,892,748 844,412
2032-34 - - 956,402 56,591 956,402 56,591

Total $ 9464000 $ 792562 § 7,854,645 § 2,098,982 § 17,318,645 $ 2,891,544

OTHER INFORMATION

Risk Management

The Agency is provided coverage under the City’s self-insurance program. Excess insurance
policies are purchased by the City’s Self-insurance fund, which include property damage and
liability. No claims have settled in the prior three years that have exceeded policy coverage.

From time to time, the Agency is a defendant in various litigation proceedings. Management
believes any losses arising from these actions will not materially affect the Agency’s financial
position.

Budget Violation

The Salem Convention Center fund exceeded budget authority in operations expenditures. This
was due to the business rebound post-pandemic being more vigorous than expected during
budget development. Expenditures are closely linked to revenues and the final level of
expenditures was not known until after budget adjustments were no longer possible.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON

(A Component Unit of the City of Salem)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - Governmental Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Tax Allocation Debt

Original/
Final
Budget Actual Variance'
Revenues
Property taxes $ 16,980,430 16,854,620 125,810
Interest on investments 205,500 156,548 48,952
Grants - - -
Intergovernmental - - -
Loan payments received - - -
Rents - - -
Other - - -
Total revenues 17,185,930 17,011,168 174,762
Expenditures
Operations - - -
Debt service 17,438,780 17,394,185 44,595
Total expenditures 17,438,780 17,394,185 44,595
Revenues over (under) expenditures (252,850) (383,017) 130,167
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - - -
Issuance of short-term debt - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other financing sources (uses) (252,850) (383,017) 130,167
Fund balance, beginning of year 4,617,760 6,153,523 (1,535,763)
Fund balance, end of year $ 4,364,910 5,770,506 $ (1,405,596)
Reconciliation to generally accepted accounting principles:
Advance from other funds
Fund balance - end of year (modified accrual)
Continued

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget
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Tax Allocation Improvements

Salem Convention Center Gain/Loss Reserve

Original/ Original/
Final Final
Budget Actual Variance' Budget Actual Variance'
s : : 5 s s :
560,500 482,019 78,481 80,000 38,445 41,555
4,717,410 1,077,206 3,640,204 - - -
505,000 432,834 72,166 - - -
78,500 482,863 (404,363) - - -
96,000 28,434 67,566 - - -
6,060 - 6,060 - 17,690 (17,690)
5,963,470 2,503,356 3,460,114 80,000 56,135 23,865
70,579,670 8,688,119 61,891,551 1,200,500 464,432 736,068
70,579,670 8,688,119 61,891,551 1,200,500 464,432 736,068
(64,616,200) (6,184,763) (58,431,437) (1,120,500) (408,297) (712,203)
- - - 390,700 272,035 118,665
15,140,000 15,100,000 40,000 - - -
15,140,000 15,100,000 40,000 390,700 272,035 118,665
(49,476,200) 8,915,237 (58,391,437) (729,800) (136,262) (593,538)
49,476,200 49,350,760 125,440 4,165,900 4,212,490 (46,590)
- $ 58,265,997 $ (58,265,997) $ 3,436,100 4,076,228 $ (640,128)
(272,035)
$ 3,804,193

Concluded
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON

(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Combining Balance Sheet - Debt Service Fund
June 30, 2022

Riverfront/ North West
Downtown Gateway Salem
Assets
Cash and investments $ 2,226,576 619,596 860,109
Accounts receivable, net 250,421 139,948 59,364
Total assets $ 2,476,997 759,544 919,473
Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue $ 191,272 107,176 44,940
Fund balances
Restricted for debt service 2,285,725 652,368 874,533
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances $ 2,476,997 759,544 919,473
Continued
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Mill Creek

Industrial South Jory

Park McGilchrist Waterfront Apartments Totals

1,218,857 $ 561,683 $ 140,708 $ 12,048 $ 5,639,577
53,873 35,094 14,908 222 553,830

1,272,730 $ 596,777 $ 155,616 $ 12270 $ 6,193,407
41,160 $ 26,743 $ 11,450 $ 160 $ 422,901

1,231,570 570,034 144,166 12,110 5,770,506

1,272,730 $ 596,777 $ 155616 $ 12,270 $ 6,193,407

Concluded

48



URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON

(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Debt Service Fund

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Revenues
Property taxes
Interest on investments
Total revenues

Expenditures
Debt service

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Riverfront/ North West
Downtown Gateway Salem
$ 7,409,384 $ 4,106,060 1,924,714
95,071 23,826 13,707
7,504,455 4,129,886 1,938,421
1,400,758 156 63
6,103,697 4,129,730 1,938,358
(6,500,000) (4,500,000) (1,800,000)
(396,303) (370,270) 138,358
2,682,028 1,022,638 736,175
$ 2,285,725 $ 652,368 $ 874,533
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Mill Creek

Industrial South Jory

Park McGilchrist Waterfront Apartments Totals
$ 1,783,079 $ 1,144299 $ 474997 §$ 12,087 $ 16,854,620
13,369 7,336 3,216 23 156,548
1,796,448 1,151,635 478,213 12,110 17,011,168
893,156 35 17 - 2,294,185
903,292 1,151,600 478,196 12,110 14,716,983
(800,000) (1,000,000) (500,000) - (15,100,000)
103,292 151,600 (21,804) 12,110 (383,017)
1,128,278 418,434 165,970 - 6,153,523
$ 1,231,570 $ 570,034 $ 144,166 $ 12,110 $ 5,770,506

Concluded
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Riverfront/Downtown (Debt Service Fund)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance'
Revenues
Property taxes $ 7663760 $ 7,663,760 $ 7,409,384 $ 254,376
Interest on investments 60,000 60,000 95,071 (35,071)
Total revenues 7,723,760 7,723,760 7,504,455 219,305
Expenditures
Debt service
Principal 7,624,000 7,624,000 7,624,000 -
Interest 277,540 277,540 276,758 782
Total expenditures 7,901,540 7,901,540 7,900,758 782
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (177,780) (177,780) (396,303) 218,523
Fund balance, beginning of year 744,270 744,270 2,682,028 (1,937,758)
Fund balance, end of year $ 566,490 $ 566,490 $ 2,285,725 % (1,719,235)

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - North Gateway (Debt Service Fund)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance®
Revenues
Property taxes $ 4,263,720 $ 4,263,720 $ 4,106,060 $ 157,660
Interest on investments 55,000 55,000 23,826 31,174
Total revenues 4,318,720 4,318,720 4,129,886 188,834
Expenditures
Debt service
Principal 4,500,000 4,500,000 4,500,000 -
Interest 1,000 1,000 156 844
Total expenditures 4,501,000 4,501,000 4,500,156 844
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (182,280) (182,280) (370,270) 187,990
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,154,520 1,154,520 1,022,638 131,882
Fund balance, end of year $ 972,240 $ 972,240 $ 652,368 $ 319,872

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - West Salem (Debt Service Fund)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance'
Revenues
Property taxes $ 1837610 $ 1837610 $ 1,924,714  $ (87,104)
Interest on investments 35,000 35,000 13,707 21,293
Total revenues 1,872,610 1,872,610 1,938,421 (65,811)
Expenditures
Debt service
Principal 1,800,000 1,800,000 1,800,000 -
Interest 1,000 1,000 63 937
Total expenditures 1,801,000 1,801,000 1,800,063 937
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 71,610 71,610 138,358 (66,748)
Fund balance, beginning of year 912,120 912,120 736,175 175,945
Fund balance, end of year $ 983,730 $ 983,730 $ 874,533 § 109,197

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget at the area level.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - Mill Creek Industrial Park (Debt Service Fund)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts

Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance'
Revenues
Property taxes $ 1585450 $ 1,585450 $ 1,783,079 $  (197,629)
Interest on investments 25,000 25,000 13,369 11,631
Total revenues 1,610,450 1,610,450 1,796,448 (185,998)
Expenditures
Debt service
Principal 1,263,260 1,263,260 1,263,256 4
Interest 429,980 429,980 429,900 80
Total expenditures 1,693,240 1,693,240 1,693,156 84
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (82,790) (82,790) 103,292 (186,082)
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,169,920 1,169,920 1,128,278 41,642
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,087,130 $ 1,087,130 § 1,231,570 $§  (144,440)

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget at the area level.
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - McGilchrist (Debt Service Fund)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance'
Revenues
Property taxes $ 1,103,370 $ 1,103,370 $ 1,144,299 § (40,929)
Interest on investments 20,000 20,000 7,336 12,664
Total revenues 1,123,370 1,123,370 1,151,635 (28,265)
Expenditures
Debt service
Principal 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
Interest 1,000 1,000 35 965
Total expenditures 1,001,000 1,001,000 1,000,035 965
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 122,370 122,370 151,600 (29,230)
Fund balance, beginning of year 451,950 451,950 418,434 33,516
Fund balance, end of year $ 574,320 $ 574,320 $ 570,034 § 4,286

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON

(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - South Waterfront (Debt Service Fund)

Revenues
Property taxes
Interest on investments

Total revenues

Expenditures
Debt service

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance'

$ 485,320 $ 485,320 $ 474,997 $ 10,323
10,000 10,000 3,216 6,784
495,320 495,320 478,213 17,107
500,000 500,000 500,000 -
500 500 17 483
500,500 500,500 500,017 483
(5,180) (5,180) (21,804) 16,624
184,980 184,980 165,970 19,010
$ 179,800 $ 179,800 $ 144,166 $ 35,634

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Jory Apartments TIF District (Debt Service Fund)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Revenues
Property taxes
Interest on investments

Total revenues

Expenditures
Debt service

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year -

Fund balance, end of year

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance'
$ 41,200 $ 41,200 12,087 § 29,113
500 500 23 477
41,700 41,700 12,110 29,590
40,000 40,000 - 40,000
500 500 - 500
40,500 40,500 - 40,500
1,200 1,200 12,110 (10,910)
$ 1,200 § 1,200 § 12,110 § (10,910)

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON

(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)

Combining Balance Sheet - Capital Projects Fund

June 30, 2022

Riverfront/ North West
Downtown Fairview Gateway Salem
Assets
Cash and investments $ 22,229,341 2,394,370 17,113,598 7,797,264
Accounts receivable, net - - 141 -
Notes receivable 2,047,007 - 62,267 -
Total assets $ 24,276,348 2,394,370 17,176,006 7,797,264
Liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 327,369 - 470 38,331
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue 2,047,007 - 62,408 -
Fund balances
Restricted for capital projects 21,901,972 2,394,370 17,113,128 7,758,933
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and fund balances $ 24,276,348 2,394,370 17,176,006 7,797,264
Continued
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Mill Creek

Industrial South Jory
Park McGilchrist Waterfront Apartments Total

2,122,150 $ 5,644,058 $ 1,345402 $ (655) $ 58,645,628
- 118,774 - - 118,915

- - - - 2,109,274
2,122,150 $ 5,762,832 $ 1,345402 $ (655) $ 60,873,817
40,713  $ 91,522 $ - 9 -9 498,405

- - - - 2,109,415
2,081,437 5,671,310 1,345,402 (555) 58,265,997
2,122,150 $ 5,762,832 $ 1,345402 $ (655) $ 60,873,817

Concluded
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Capital Projects Fund
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Riverfront/ North West
Downtown Fairview Gateway Salem
Revenues
Interest on investments $ 184,094 $ 24233 $ 133,903 $ 63,324
Grants - - - -
Intergovernmental 432,834 - - -
Loan payments received 462,781 - 20,082 -
Rents 21,914 - 6,520 -
Total revenues 1,101,623 24,233 160,505 63,324
Expenditures
Materials and services 4,356,256 34,087 1,335,512 745,711
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (3,254,633) (9,854) (1,175,007) (682,387)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 6,500,000 - 4,500,000 1,800,000
Net change in fund balance 3,245,367 (9,854) 3,324,993 1,117,613
Fund balance, beginning of year 18,656,605 2,404,224 13,788,135 6,641,320
Fund balance, end of year $ 21901972 $ 2,394370 $ 17,113,128 $ 7,758,933
Continued
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Mill Creek

Industrial South Jory
Park McGilchrist Waterfront Apartments Total

$ 18,231 $ 50,372 % 7862 $ - 482,019
- 1,077,206 - - 1,077,206

- - - - 432,834

- - - - 482,863

- - - - 28,434

18,231 1,127,578 7,862 - 2,503,356
551,865 1,647,412 17,243 33 8,688,119
(533,634) (519,834) (9,381) (33) (6,184,763)
800,000 1,000,000 500,000 - 15,100,000
266,366 480,166 490,619 (33) 8,915,237
1,815,071 5,191,144 854,783 (522) 49,350,760

$ 2081437 $ 5671310 $ 1345402 $ (555) $ 58,265,997
Concluded
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Riverfront/Downtown (Capital Projects Fund)

Revenues
Rents
Intergovernmental
Interest on investments
Loan payments received
Total revenues

Expenditures
Operations

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of short-term debt

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance'
$ 96,000 96,000 $ 21914  § 74,086
325,000 325,000 432,834 (107,834)
200,000 200,000 184,094 15,906
25,000 25,000 462,781 (437,781)
646,000 646,000 1,101,623 (455,623)
25,849,210 25,849,210 4,356,256 21,492,954
(25,203,210) (25,203,210) (3,254,633) 21,037,331
6,500,000 6,500,000 6,500,000 -
(18,703,210) (18,703,210) 3,245,367 21,037,331
18,703,210 18,703,210 18,656,605 46,605
$ - - 3 21,901,972 $ 21,083,936

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Fairview (Capital Projects Fund)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Revenues
Interest on investments
Loan payments received
Total revenues

Expenditures
Operations

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts

Original Final (Budgetary Basis)  Variance'
$ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ 24233 $ 15,767
25,000 25,000 - 25,000
65,000 65,000 24,233 40,767
2,470,460 2,470,460 34,087 2,436,373
(2,405460)  (2,405,460) (9.854)  (2,395,606)
2,405,460 2,405,460 2,404,224 1,236
$ - 9 - $ 2,394,370 $ (2,394,370)

64



URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON

(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - North Gateway (Capital Projects Fund)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Revenues
Rents
Interest on investments
Loan payments received
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Operations

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds of short-term capital related debt

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts

Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance'
- 8 - $ 6,520 $ (6,520)
150,000 150,000 133,903 16,097
28,500 28,500 20,082 8,418
6,060 6,060 - 6,060
184,560 184,560 160,505 24,055
18,472,410 18,472,410 1,335,512 17,136,898
(18,287,850) (18,287,850) (1,175,007) (17,112,843)
4,500,000 4,500,000 4,500,000 -
(13,787,850) (13,787,850) 3,324,993 (17,112,843)
13,787,850 13,787,850 13,788,135 (285)
- $ - 3 17,113,128 $ (17,113,128)
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - West Salem (Capital Projects Fund)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Revenues
Interest on investments

Expenditures
Operations

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds of short-term capital related debt

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts

Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance'
$ 65,000 $ 65,000 $ 63,324 § 1,676
8,515,820 8,515,820 745,711 7,770,109
(8,450,820) (8,450,820) (682,387) (7,768,433)
1,800,000 1,800,000 1,800,000 -
(6,650,820) (6,650,820) 1,117,613 (7,768,433)
6,650,820 6,650,820 6,641,320 9,500
$ - 3 - $ 7,758,933 $§  (7,758,933)

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Mill Creek Industrial Park (Capital Projects Fund)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts

Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance'
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 180,000 $ 180,000 - $ 180,000
Interest on investments 20,000 20,000 18,231 1,769
Total revenues 200,000 200,000 18,231 181,769
Expenditures
Operations 2,823,630 2,823,630 551,865 2,271,765
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (2,623,630) (2,623,630) (533,634) (2,089,996)
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of short-term debt 800,000 800,000 800,000 -
Net change in fund balance (1,823,630) (1,823,630) 266,366 (2,089,996)
Fund balance, beginning of year 1,823,630 1,823,630 1,815,071 8,559
Fund balance, end of year $ - - 2,081,437 $ (2,081,437)

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - McGilchrist (Capital Projects Fund)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance'
Revenues
Grants $ 4717410 $ 4717410 $ 1,077,206 $ 3,640,204
Interest on investments 70,000 70,000 50,372 19,628
Total revenues 4,787,410 4,787,410 1,127,578 3,659,832
Expenditures
Operations 10,956,170 10,956,170 1,647,412 9,308,758
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (6,168,760) (6,168,760) (519,834) (5,648,926)
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of short-term capital related debt 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
Net change in fund balance (5,168,760) (5,168,760) 480,166 (5,648,926)
Fund balance, beginning of year 5,168,760 5,168,760 5,191,144 (22,384)
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - $ 5,671,310 §$ (5,671,310)

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - South Waterfront (Capital Projects Fund)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis)  Variance'
Revenues
Interest on investments $ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ 7,862 $ 7,138
Expenditures
Operations 1,451,470 1,451,470 17,243 1,434,227
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (1,436,470) (1,436,470) (9,381) (1,427,089)
Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds of short-term capital related debt 500,000 500,000 500,000 -
Net change in fund balance (936,470) (936,470) 490,619 (1,427,089)
Fund balance, beginning of year 936,470 936,470 854,783 81,687
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - $ 1,345,402 $ (1,345,402)

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget
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URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Jory Apartments TIF District (Capital Projects Fund)
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis)  Variance'
Revenues
Interest on investments $ 500 $ 500 $ - 5 500
Expenditures
Operations 40,500 40,500 33 40,467
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (40,000) (40,000) (33) (39,967)
Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds of short-term capital related debt 40,000 40,000 - 40,000
Net change in fund balance - - (33) 33
Fund balance, beginning of year - - (522) 522
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - $ (555) $ 555

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget
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(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)
Schedule of Expenditures by Project - Budget and Actual
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON

Riverfront/Downtown
682000 Project coordination/support
682018  Toolbox grant program
682023  Marketing for Salem Convention Center
682083  Streetscape concepts
682086  Alley improvements
682087  Left turn lane removals
682089  State St one-way to two-way conversion
682093 UGM & Saffron Acquisition
682097  Strategic project grant program
682103  Redvlpmnt of Saffrom/UGM Prog
682105  Alley Poles-Hardware
682108  Open for Business Grant
682109 Parkade Improvement Design
682110  Court St two-way conversion
682111  Streetscape Improvements Ph IV

Total Riverfront/Downtown

Fairview
683000 Project coordination/support
683016  Industrial site readiness

Total Fairview Industrial Park

North Gateway
684000 Project coordination/support
684032 Toolbox grant program
684053 UR N Gateway-2640 Portland Rd
684059 2640 Portland Rd sewer line replace
684060 Pine St railroad pan
684061  Stategic project grant

Total North Gateway

West Salem
685000 Project coordination/support
685008  Capital grant program
685030 Wallace Ro-2nd St design
685031  Environmental consulting-2nd St

Total West Salem

Mill Creek Industrial Park
686000  Project coordination/support
686011 SEDCOR contract
686025 Wetland phase Il
686026  Mill Creek sewer conversion

Total Mill Creek Industrial Park

McGilchrist
687000  Project coordination/support
687002 Design road improvements, 12th to 25th
687005  McGilchrist St SE/12th to 25th
687006 McGilchrist St SE at 22nd Ave SE

Total McGilchrist

South Waterfront
688000  Project coordination/support
688020  Pringle creek trail Improvements

Total South Waterfront

Jory Apartments
689000 Project coordination/support

Total Jory Apartments

Total all projects
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Budget

Actual

Variance

803,423
1,312,747
300,000
968,445
1,364
4,739
56,954
505,289
299,608
75,210
716
20,000
335
6,828
598

25,849,210

4,356,256

21,492,954

33,927
160

2,470,460

34,087

2,436,373

208,358
1,108,229
6,494

926
4,355
7,150

18,472,410

1,335,512

17,136,898

116,892
213,756
408,233

6,830

8,515,820

745,711

7,770,109

142,644
62,500
342,882
3,839

2,823,630

551,865

2,271,765

80,305
18,166
1,094,927
454,014

10,956,170

1,647,412

9,308,758

12,427
4,816

1,451,470

17,243

1,434,227

33

40,500

33

$ 70,579,670

8,688,119

$ 61,851,084




URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON

(A Component Unit of the City of Salem, Oregon)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Salem Convention Center (Proprietary Fund)

Revenues

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Sales, fees, licenses, and permits $ 1,366,620

Rents
Interest on investments
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Operations

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Reconciliation to generally accepted accounting principles:

Net change in marketing advance from City

Advance to reserve fund
Capital assets

Net position at end of year

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Variance'
1,366,620 1,650,553 $ (283,933)
715,750 715,750 882,166 (166,416)
2,500 2,500 - 2,500
325,000 325,000 4,100 320,900
2,409,870 2,409,870 2,536,819 (126,949)
2,019,170 2,019,170 2,264,784 (245,614) 2
390,700 390,700 272,035 118,665
(390,700) (390,700) (272,035) (118,665)
- - (21,881) 21,881
$ - - (21,881) § 21,881
(37,428)
272,035
23,905,883
24,118,609

1 () indicates revenues/expenditures in excess of budget

2 Budget violation. See note on page 42

72




OTHER INFORMATION

73



Impact on Overlapping Taxing Districts of Property Tax Levied by Urban Renewal
Districts for Fiscal Year 2021-22

Urban renewal areas in Oregon receive revenue through division of property tax. When an urban
renewal area has (URA) assessed value above a frozen base, the URA receives most of the
property tax on the excess value that would have otherwise been paid to the overlapping taxing
districts. ORS 457.460(1)(e) requires an annual “analysis of the impact, if any, of carrying out the
urban renewal plan on the tax collections for the preceding year for all taxing districts” subject to
division of tax. In fiscal year 2021-22, the City of Salem Urban Renewal areas had a total property
tax levy impact on overlapping taxing districts of $13,977,527 The following table details each
urban renewal area’s impact on each overlapping taxing district:

Urban Renewal Plan Area

Taxing District Riverfront N.Gateway W.Salem Mill Creek McGilchrist S. Waterfront Jory Total

Chemeketa Community College $ 172,696 $ 173,534 § 98,067 $ 76,043 $ 48,782 $ 20,448 $ 708 (% 590,278
Chemeketa Regional Library 22,570 22,679 8,975 9,938 6,375 2,672 92 73,301
City of Salem 1,609,003 1,616,816 639,830 708,492 454,498 190,516 6,596 5,225,751
City of Salem bonds after 2001 - - 132,640 - - - - 132,640
Marion County 834,701 838,754 - 367,544 235,779 98,834 3,422 2,379,034
MC & 4-H Extension Service District 13,796 13,863 6,075 3,897 1,634 56 39,321
Marion Soil & Water 13,796 13,863 - 6,075 3,897 1,634 56 39,321
Polk County - - 188,215 - - - - 188,215
Polk 4-H/M Garden/Ag/Forest Ext Dist 8,119 8,119
Polk Soil/Water Conservation Dist - - 5,413 - - - - 5,413
Salem Area Mass Transit 209,944 210,964 83,486 92,445 59,303 24,859 861 681,862
Salem-Keizer School Dist 1,247,416 1,253,473 496,043 549,253 352,359 147,702 5113 4,051,359
Salem-Keizer SD bond after 2021 - - 297,033 - - - - 297,033
Willamette Regional ESD 81,864 82,262 32,554 36,047 23,124 9,693 336 265,880
Total $4,205,786 $4,226,208 $1,990,375 $1,851,912 $1,188,015 $ 497,993 $17,240 | $ 13,977,527

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SALEM, OREGON
Maximum Indebtedness Compliance
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022
Borrowing
Maximum Borrowed to Capacity Outstanding
Urban Renwal District Indebtedness Date Remaining Debt

Riverfront/Downtown $315,000,000 $135,632,345 $179,367,655 $ 9,464,000
Fairview 6,286,000 6,281,615 4,385 -
North Gateway 101,466,402 83,998,004 17,468,399 -
West Salem 31,000,000 15,027,425 15,972,575 -
Mill Creek 26,000,000 16,636,299 9,363,701 7,854,645
McGilchrist 11,000,000 8,500,000 2,500,000 -
South Waterfront 24,000,000 4,077,000 19,923,000 -
Jory Apartments 20,725,125 - 20,725,125 -
$17,318,645
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS

Agency Officials
Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Salem
Salem, Oregon

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
basic financial statements of the Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Salem, Oregon (a component unit of the
City of Salem, Oregon) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated
January 31, 2023.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-
000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and disclosures
which included, but were not limited to the following:

. Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).

" Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.

= Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).

. Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.

" Programs funded from outside sources.

" Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).

n Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).

. Accountability for collecting or receiving money by elected officials — no money was collected or

received by elected officials.

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the Agency was not in
substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions
of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the
Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations except as follows:

e Expenditures in excess of appropriations as described in the notes to the financial statements.
e Deficit fund balance in the Jory Apartments TIF District fund as of June 30, 2022.
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency's internal control over
financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Agency's internal control.

Restriction on Use
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Agency Officials and management of the Urban

Renewal Agency of the City of Salem, Oregon and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these parties.

GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

By M

Ryan T. Pasquarella, A Shareholder
January 31, 2023
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